https://ntrs.nasa.gov/search.jsp?R=19660019997 2020-03-16T19:27:30+00:00Z

U10 Swoveln







A2136-1 (REV. 6-61)

 Report No. 543-1-65-40

 Date
 25 June 1965

 No. of Pages
 42

FM RECEIVER

DYNAMIC RESPONSE

9 D 27 412 D. Boyce, 543-1 Prepared by G. D.

Approved by J. D. Rhamy, 543 Elect. Group Engr

(This work was performed at the request of the Centaur RF Systems Group Dept 963-6 and funded by WAP K200594)

÷ •.

* *

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page No.
	SUMMARY	111
1	INTRODUCTION	1
2	RECEIVER DESCRIPTION	3
3	ANTICIPATED DYNAMIC RESPONSE	6
4	EMPIRICAL RESULTS	8
5	ANALYTICAL TECHNIQUE	10
6	ANALOG COMPUTER SIMULATION	18
7	COMPUTER SOLUTIONS	26
8	CONCLUSIONS	38
9	ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS	39
10	REFERENCES	40
	APPENDIX I	41

٠ •

SUMMARY

29287

This report describes a study into the dynamic response produced by an FM receiver employing an amplitude sensitive discriminator. A simple, graphical explanation of the anticipated response is presented. Empirical results obtained in the evaluation of an FM telemetry receiver are included. Analytical techniques leading to a mathematical proof of receiver behavior are discussed. The application of the analog computer to the problem is outlined and the analog simulation of the receiver system described. Computer solutions for a number of conditions are included in the form of graphic recordings. Finally, it is concluded that dynamic response such as that exhibited by the AVCO range safety receiver is the <u>natural be-</u> havior anticipated from such a receiver.

1. INTRODUCTION

A new receiver GD/C P/N 55-O1233, manufactured by AVCO, is being incorporated into the Centaur range safety system. The performance requirements of the receiver are described by GD/C specification.

Evaluation tests of the receiver at NASA test facilities and at GD/C revealed a dynamic response characteristic that initially appeared unusual to test personnel. Range personnel were disturbed to the point where they were reluctant to allow the receiver to be flown. The dynamic test was performed by supplying an rf signal modulated by two tones to the receiver. The rf signal carrier frequency was initially set well outside the passband of the receiver (frequency lower than receiver); then, with rf level held constant, the carrier frequency was moved toward the receiver passband until a command actuation was observed; this frequency was recorded. The carrier frequency movement was then continued until the command deactivated and that frequency recorded. This process was continued until the carrier frequency was well beyond the passband on the high frequency side. The rf level was then changed 10 db and another sweep made through the spectrum observing again the carrier frequencies producing command "on-off" states. From the resulting data a curve such as that of Figure 1 was generated. The curve shows two side lobes and a wider center lobe where the command is activated. Narrow command deactivate zones (approximately onehalf the peak deviation in width) separate the center lobe and sidelebes. The center lobe is narrower than the unmodulated response (see Figure 1) by an amount approximately equal to the peak deviation.



10 X 10 TO V2 INCH 46 1327 7 X 10 IN • ALBANENE® MADLINUSA KEUFFEL & ESSER CO.

Т М

The study described in this report was initiated to gain a better understanding of the dynamic response characteristic of the FM command receiver.

2. RECEIVER DESCRIPTION

A brief description of the receiver is included in this section for the reader's convenience. More detailed descriptive information is available in the receiver handbook.

A simplified block diagram of the receiver is shown in Figure 2. The three center blocks of the diagram are of greatest interest for the discussion here for it is their characteristics that establish the dynamic response of the receiver.

The IF filter features a sharp selectivity with a low 60 db bandwidth to 3 db bandwidth ratio. The nominal filter transfer function is that of a 4 pole Chebishev filter having a bandwidth of about 240 kilocycles and 2 db passband ripple. The actual filter is a 4 crystal lattice network. This type of filter does not have a linear phase characteristic (a requirement for distortionless FM) in the passband and the phase response changes violently near the bandedges. Figure 3 is a graph of the anticipated phase response for the filter.

Limiting is accomplished in three amplifier stages that procede the discriminator. Each stage reaches its limiting level at a different rf input level to the receiver thereby providing a large overall dynamic limiting range.

543-1-65-40





The frequency discriminator is a conventional Foster-Seeley circuit. The discriminator bandwidth (frequency separation between response peaks) is much wider than the IF bandpass of the receiver to assure good linearity over the region of interest.

3. ANTICIPATED DYNAMIC RESPONSE

The dynamic response exhibited by the range safety receiver (or any FM receiver employing a Foster-Seeley discriminator) can be explained by the "composite" frequency discrimination characteristic of the receiver. The Foster-Seeley discriminator's output amplitude is propertional to input voltage and the frequency deviation of the signal; for this reason, the discriminator is always preceded by one or more limiter stages. The selectivity of the receiver is established by the bandpass filter located ahead of the limiter stages. Typically the IF bandwidth is narrower than the frequency discriminator characteristic. The composite frequency discrimination characteristics of the receiver can be described by a superposition of the IF bandpass and FM discriminator characteristics. Figure 4 illustrates such a composite frequency discrimination characteristic for a hypothetical receiver to aid discussion. From Figure 4 it may be noted that the composite discriminator output decreases when the input frequency is sufficiently offset from band center because the IF bandpass filter attenuation drops the signal below limiting level. Again, directly from Figure 4, it is seen that the composite discriminator characteristic has slopes of opposite sign at the bandedges compared to the band center slope. The result is that there are points near the composite discriminator response





peaks where the demodulated output signal is cancelled and any resultant is a small amount of second harmonic. There are two positions, one on each side of the passband beyond the cancellation points, where the discriminator output signal again increases but is of opposite sign due to operating on the outside slopes of the composite discriminator characteristic. A frequency sweep of a modulated signal, therefore, produces a signal such as illustrated in the lower portion of Figure 4. (See also computer solutions in Section 7.) The center lobe is typically narrower than the width of the unmodulated passband because of the frequency deviation and the difference in the magnitude of the inter and outer discriminator slope magnitudes.

Pender & McIlwan³ briefly discuss the dynamic response of FM receivers.

4. EMPIRICAL RESULTS

L

A Nems-Clarke R1037-A receiver was used to obtain data on FM receiver dynamic response. This receiver was used for the test to demonstrate that the dynamic response exhibited by the AVCO receiver is not peculiar to that receiver but typical of FM receivers employing the Foster-Seeley type discriminator. Additionally, it was convenient to use the Nams-Clarke receiver because of the availability of the limited IF, video and DC FM discriminator outputs at accessible terminals.

Photographs of Figure 5 show null outputs as they occurred at the points of slope reversal.

1



Low Frequency Null 214.668 MC

Receiver Video Output

Receiver Limiter Output

--

High Frequency Null 215.429 MC

'

Receiver Video Output

Receiver Limiter Output

Test Conditions (both photos)

Receiver:	Nems-Clarke R1037-A S/N				355	
Modulation: RF Level:	7.5 KC 3000	Rate volts	30	KC	Peak	

Figure 5. Null Points Measured on the Nems-Clarke Telemetry Receiver

XXX

_

The amplitude modulation which cancels the FM is clearly evident in the limited IF output (lower trace on the photos). The AM indicates operation below the limiting level and on the IF filter skirt. Figure 6 illustrates the measured composite discriminator characteristic, while, Figure 7 shows normal operation at band center.

5. ANALYTICAL TECHNIQUE

A mathematical analysis was undertaken in an attempt to improve the understanding of the dynamic response characteristics, for additional verification of experimental results, and to determine if any other factors (such as the Chebishev filter phase characteristic) played a significant role in the observed response.

The classical approach for the solution of a problem of this type is examined. While the actual mathematical solution of this problem is quite formidable, the approach is simple and straightforward. A reasonable simplification of the receiver system considers only the IF filter, frequency discriminator and output tone filters (see Figure 8). The input to this system is easily described as a time function.

$$f(t) = A \operatorname{pin} \left(\omega_0 t + \frac{\Delta \omega}{\omega_1} \operatorname{pin} \omega_1 + \frac{\Delta \omega}{\omega_2} \operatorname{pin} \omega_2 t \right)$$
(1)



• •

K-E 10 X 10 TO 1/1 INCH 46 1327 X T X 10 IN. • ALBANENE® HADTINUS A. KEUPTEL & ESSER CO.



Normal operation at band center 214.970 MC Upper Trace: Receiver Video output Lower Trace: Receiver Limiter output

Test Condition:

•]

Receiver: Nems-Clarke R 1037-A S/N 355 (300 KC IF Bandwidth)

Modulation: 7.5 KC rate, 30 KC peak deviation RF Level: 3000 volts

Figure 7. Normal Operation





`:

By means of the Fourier integral the function (f(t)) is transformed to the frequency domain.

$$F_{i}(j\omega) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} f(t)e^{-j\omega t} dt$$
(2)

If the IF filter frequency transfer function is $H_{j}(j\omega)$, then the filter output is

$$G_{i}(J\omega) = F_{i}(J\omega) H_{i}(J\omega)$$
(3)

 $G_1(\cup \omega)$ is transformed to the time domain by the inverse Fourier transform

$$g(t) = \frac{1}{2\pi} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} G(J\omega) e^{J\omega t} d\omega$$
(4)

Examining the argument of the function g(t) the phase $\mathfrak{g}(t)$ may be deduced. The output $\mathcal{E}(t)$ of an ideal discriminator is simply the first derivative of $\mathfrak{g}(t)$ with respect to time

$$\mathcal{E}(\mathbf{x}) = \mathbf{k} \frac{d\mathbf{a}(\mathbf{x})}{d\mathbf{x}} \tag{5}$$

The discriminator output is then convolved with the time response of the tone filters to obtain the system output.

It was immediately apparent that the magnitude of the problem was such that a manual solution was not economically feasible. This was true even for the simpler case of a single modulating tone. Computer support, therefore, was clearly in order if an analytical solution was to be obtained with a reasonable expenditure of time and money.

First consideration was given to the application of the digital computer for solution of this problem. "Canned" programs are available that accept the Laplace form of the filter transfer function. Getting the input drive function (see equation (1)) into a form apprepriate for use as input data to the filter program presented a problem. It was necessary to expand the function into its component parts; this would have entailed a new pregram. The procedure is to expand the function of equation (1) by the sum of angles then apply the following identities:

$$\cos\left(\frac{\Delta\omega}{\omega_{1}},\omega_{1},\omega_{2},t\right) = \int_{0}\left(\frac{\Delta\omega}{\omega_{1}}\right) + 2\sum_{i}^{m}\int_{2m}\left(\frac{\Delta\omega}{\omega_{1}}\right)\cos(2m\omega_{i},t)$$
(6)
$$\sin\left(\frac{\Delta\omega}{\omega_{1}},\omega_{1},\omega_{2},t\right) = 2\sum_{i}^{m}\int_{2m-1}\left(\frac{\Delta\omega}{\omega_{1}}\right)\sin(2m-1)\omega_{1}t$$

The series are truncated arbitrarily at a point that includes all significant components. Because this would have required a new program and because its general solution was required only once, it appeared feasible to accomplish this by hand. This was actually accomplished and results are shown in Figure 9 where they are evaluated for tones 1 and 5. The discriminator function appeared as another problem for the digital computer. It was finally decided that a reasonable approach would be one that utilised the computer to detect



359-11 MADE INU S.A. 10 X 10 TO THE 1/2 INCH KEUFFEL & ESSER CO. М М

۰.

positive zero crossing of the function; the instantaneous frequency is then defined as the reciprocal of the period between positive zero crossings. The instantaneous deviation would then be the difference between the instantaneous frequency and the carrier frequency. If less than an ideal discriminator function were desired (a requirement for the problem of interest) the limiting function must also be included; this appeared relatively easy to accomplish. Some rough estimations of the required computer time for a solution indicated the digital approach might be expensive depending upon the number of steady-state solutions required.

Consideration was then given to the application of the analog computer. Examination of the requirements for the system simulation on the analog computer revealed no unsurmountable problems. The solution of communication problems by use of an analog computer is not new, such $\frac{4}{4,5}$ techniques being described as early as 1961. It appeared that use of the analog computer for this problem would be less expensive and more quickly accomplished than by digital, and it effered additional insight in understanding the system because of "live" graphical eutput and enline adjustability. This was the computer approach finally utilized; the simulation is described in the following section and the computer solutions are discussed in Section 7.

6. ANALOG COMPUTER SIMULATION

This section describes (1) the method of solution by analog computer, (2) technical details of some of the circuits employed, and (3) instructions for calibration which will assist personnel at another laboratory in putting this simulation on their computer quickly. Figure 10 is a complete block diagram of the system, using conventional analog notation. Dotted lines indicate connections for calibration purposes, and solid lines indicate the basic FM system simulation.

Initial considerations indicated a frequency scaling factor of 10^{-5} or 10^{-6} for analog simulation of this FM receiver. Since frequency scaling by 10^{-5} would require less computer solution time (a factor of 10) this approach was investigated first.

Unsuccessful Attempts to Use Scaling of 10^{-5} : A 107 CPS constant amplitude oscillator capable of being frequency modulated was synthesized first. This amplitude stabilized escillator was later sum at 1/100 the frequency and proved to be quite stable at either frequency. A second order system in the form of a three amplifier loop was tried for simulating each set of poles in a Chebishev filter, but the Q adjustments were unstable for large values.

The next attempt used a twin "T" circuit as a quadratic filter (see Figure 11) The general range of desired frequencies were easily obtained and Q's in excess of the maximum Q desired were attainable.



19-1



FIGURE IO ANALOG COMPUTER SIMULATION

19

FILTER 4



• •

·



Figure 11. Twin "T" Filter

A test was conducted by frequency modulating the 107 cps carrier with a single tone generator and then demodulating the filtering to reobtain the tone. Except for a DC drift out of the demodulator the results were very encouraging.

A four pole Chebishev filter was synthesized using twin "T" networks. The FM carrier was driven with a sweep generator and the output of the filter was amplitude detected. The sweep generator drove the x axis of an x-y recorder and the amplitude detector drove the y axis. The output from this filter circuit was never satisfactory. The following problems caused the termination of this approach: (1) Q and frequency measurements were made with considerable difficulty. (2) Q and fo required too much time to adjust because of interaction between these two parameters. (3) Frequency pulling or shift in frequency was noted when the individual poles of the filter were connected in series. (4) Lack of sufficient isolation between filter stages was detected. (5) Major factor which caused this line of research to be abandoned was the apparent non-linearity which was detected with a change in gain; the cause was undetermined, but the d v/dt limitation of the operational amplifier was suspected.

Success in Using Scaling of 10^{-6} : The next alternative required frequency scaling by 10^{-6} and subsequent changes in the existing circuits. Two computing boards were used because of the number of amplifiers required and the availability of integrators with different RC time constants. Amplifiers in station two had RC time constants of 0.1 sec and station three had one second time constants. With the exception of the carrier

oscillator all 10 cycle circuits were on station two and all tone circuits were on station three. The exact location may be found by noting the station number posted with the amplifier number on the main schematic in Figure 10.

The peak follower in Figure 10 serves two purposes: 1) calibration of the Q of the filter sections, and 2) peak reading of the filter output to the x, y plotter. It is not used to simulate any function of the FM receiver. The detailed operation of this circuit is given presently. Integrator 19-2 is the time generator.

This time generator should be checked with the EPUT Meter (combination Events per unit time and time interval meter EPUT and TIM). This will eliminate the possibility of an incorrect RC time constant from being perpetuated into other measurements.

The Qs of the individual filters which makes up the four pole filter are adjusted by using a peak follower, a comparator, and a time generator.

The technique is to excite the filter and measure the rate of decay of the sinusoid. The quantity actually measured is the time required for the exponential envelope to decay to one half of its initial value. This time and the circuit Q are related by the easily derived expression

$$t = \left(\frac{2}{\pi}\right)\frac{\zeta}{4} = 0.2206 \frac{Q}{4}$$
(7)

In the circuit the damping is tweeked until the t corresponds to the desired Q. (At the high Q values employed in these circuits the frequency "f" is essentially independent of Q.)

Output of amp 3 1-2 is the initial condition for the pole being adjusted and also the output of the peak follower. The comparator has 1/2 of the initial condition as a bias. When the computer is set to "operate", the peak follower tracks the output of the filter being adjusted to the half voltage point where the computer is switched to hold. The output of the timegenerator will agree with the computed time when the proper Q has been set. An initial setting of the pot may be computed from the relationship Wo/Q = the pot setting. At the same time the Q is being tweeked in, the W_0 pots may also receive final tweeking.

The TIM is connected to the output of the filter being tested for Q. The initial condition behaves as if it were an impulse function causing the filter to ring at the natural frequency. Both frequency and Q may be adjusted simultaneously.

The peak follower is an instrumentation circuit which is used for calibration and envelope detection.

The peak follower is a sample hold circuit that samples the f(t) term when it is at a maximum. The circuit is included with the analog computer FM receiver diagram (dashed enclosure). The input labeled "j" is connected to the filter point whose value is k(f(t))/S. The 1/s shifts the phase of f(t) by 90° so that when k(f(t)/s is equal to zero, f(t) is a positive or negative extreme. Pot 40 is used to bias the input to amplifier 9. Amplifier 9 has a cathode follower limiter around it so that its output can only be negative. If f(t) is negative then the input labeled "K" is negative and the output of amplifier 9 is

• .

blocked or zero. If f(t) is positive and k(f(t))/s is equal to zero the output of 9 will generate a pulse. The electronic switch between amplifiers 14 and 15 will close for the duration of the pulse.

Integrator 16 and amplifiers 14 and 15 have a R.C. time constant of 1/2 millisecond, but this value can be made smaller if desired. From the previous text it has been implied that the peak follower is polarity sensitive. This may be eliminated by appropriate use of absolute value circuits.

Pot 47 on station three depends on relationship of voltage to frequency. The servo pot varies the RC time constant of the amplifier by changing the input resistance. A way to determine this pot value requires the multiplier to be set with fixed voltages and the corresponding frequencies. The ratio of the change in voltage to the change in frequency can then be normalized to give .01 cycles per volt of modulation. This normalizing coefficient is the setting for pot 47 in Figure 10.

The following Table may be used to change the Chebishev filter into a linear phase filter.

2	-	.6663	306738
4	-	.6663	316738
6	-	.0997	321459
27		.6701	86776
28	-	.6701	106776
29	-	.1459	120997

Pots

The rest of the pot settings should remain the same.

Pots 42, 43, 44, and 45 were changed an equal amount to increase or decrease the gain of the filter. The change in pot value is approximately equal to the fourth root of the change in gain. A linear change in gain at the output can be made by pot 38.

7. COMPUTER SOLUTIONS

۰.

The analog computer simulation of the range safety receiver system was accomplished by scaling frequency by a factor of 10^{-6} . The receiver IF frequency is 10.7 megacycles and the computer simulated IF frequency 10.7 cycles.

Prior to making the actual computer "runs" it was necessary to verify that the computer did indeed include the proper transfer functions and that the accuracy of simulation was adequate. The static linearity of the modulator was measured first with the result that the maximum deviation from a straight line through the end points was 2 parts out of 464. The IF filter characteristics were then measured by driving the modulator with a ramp (at a very low sweep rate) and using the peak follower and an X-Y plotter to record the response. Figures 18 and 13 illustrate the results for the Chebishev and linear phase filters respectively. The mathematical description of the filter transfer functions are:

$$\frac{C_{o}}{C_{in}} = \frac{s}{[s-P_{i}][s-\bar{P}$$

Chebishev:

 $\begin{array}{rcl} P_1 &=& -.0788 + J66.50 \\ \overline{P}_1 &=& -.0788 - J66.50 \\ P_2 &=& -.1902 + J66.91 \\ \overline{P}_2 &=& -.1902 - J66.91 \\ P_3 &=& -.1902 + J67.48 \\ \overline{P}_3 &=& -.1902 - J67.48 \\ \overline{P}_4 &=& -.0788 + J67.89 \\ \overline{P}_4 &=& -.0788 - J67.89 \end{array}$

Linear Phase:

 $P_{1} = -.4984 + J66.63$ $P_{2} = -.4984 - J66.63$ $P_{2} = -.7296 + J67.01$ $P_{3} = -.7296 - J67.01$ $P_{3} = -.7296 + J67.38$ $P_{3} = -.4984 + J67.76$ $P_{4} = -.4984 - J67.76$








The frequency discriminator characteristic was determined also by a sweep of the modulator over the frequency range of interest. Figure 14 is an X-Y slot of the discriminator voltage vessus frequency characteristic.

The first case evaluated on the computer was a single tone case. This case is equivalent to the unscaled condition where the signal is modulated by a 7.5 kilocycle sine wave producing a peak deviation of 30 kilocycles. A ramp voltage, summed with the modulation, drove the modulator slowly over the frequency range of interest (each run required approximately two hours). The sweep range was chosen such that the limiter preceding the discriminator dropped below limiting level at both ends of the sweep. Figure 15 is a recording of run results. The output from the IF filters (Chebishev transfer function) is recorded as are the outputs of the limiter, discriminator, ramp generator, tone filter, modulator, and tone oscillator. The modulator output was included in the recording for the purpose of showing that it was free of amplitude modulation. The tone oscillator was included to provide a phase reference for comparing tone filter output. A fairly high level signal was provided for this run (limiter input was 30 volts peak-to-peak at bandcenter) and limiting level was reached quickly. It may be noted from Figure 15 that the tone filter output is large and approximately 180° out of phase with the tone oscillator output when operation is below the limiter level. When the carrier frequency is moved into the pass band where limiting is continuous, the tone filter output is in phase with the tone oscillator. Null conditions occurred on





Start Start Strategy and Strategy	
	ی این از این میشوند میشنده بیشان از داشت. این مشینه این این مشینه این از ایشتا میشیند و این میشود و این از این ۱۹۸۸
IT FILTER OUTBUT (CHERISHEV)	
50V/CM	
📲 📼 San 🕴 📲 🚛 🚛 🚛 🚛 🖓 👘 👘	
	and a second second The second se
The second	
	and the second
	ار این
	a a shi ka
1V/CM	a second seco
	and the second
	محدارد بالمراجع فالفاصية بمناهدة فتنافي والمتعالية والمتعالية والمتحد
1V/CM	a a lamahan kana sana sana sana sana sana sana sa
••• A second s second second se second second seco second second sec	
والمستنب والمتشخصة التنب تتبع الالج	
10.0	(a) A second se second second sec
	a second a second s
	المحاج المحاجب فيتشمونه بعداقه فستسوير والمتشاف والمتراجع والمتشاوين
CARRIER FRECHENCY	
a 👔 a a an	n na managana kanakan ing panananan ana ana ana ana ana ana na na n
10.5	an eine an anna an a
the second secon	
TONE FILTER OUTPUT	
TORE FILTER OUTFUT	
TONE FILTER OUTFUT	
TONE FILTER OUTPUT	
TORE FILTER OUTFUT	
TORE FILTER OUTPUT	
TORE FILTER OUTFUT	
TONE FILTER OUTFUT MCIVILATOR OUTFUT	
TONE FILTER OUTFUT MCPULATOR OUTFUT TONE OSCILLER OUTFUT	
TONE FILTER OUTFUT MCIULATOR OUTFUT TONE OSCILLER OUTFUT	
TONE FILTER OUTPUT MCIULATOR OUTPUT TONE OSCILLOR OUTPUT	
TONE FILTER OUTPUT MCEULATOR OUTPUT TONE OSCIILAR OUTPUT	
TONE FILTER OUTPUT MOEULATOR OUTPUT TONE OSCIILAR OUTPUT	
TONE FILTER OUTPUT MOPULATOR OUTPUT TONE OSCILLARE OUTPUT	
TONE FILTER OUTPUT MODULATOR OUTPUT TONE OSCILLADR OUTPUT	
TONE FILTER OUTPUT	
TORE FILTER OUTFUT	
TORE FILTER OUTFUT MODULATOR OUTFUT TONE OSCILLAR OUTFUT	
TONE FILTER OUTFUT MCIVILATOR OUTFUT TONE OSCIILLER OUTFUT	
TONE FILTER OUTFUT MCIVILATOR OUTFUT TONE OSCIILLER OUTFUT	
TONE FILTER OUTFUT MCIULATOR OUTFUT TONE OSCILLADR OUTFUT	

•

•

Ì

S RECORDING CHARTS a province a service a u thu La la mar i.... 4 r الالمد الأسانيسين أوجع بالجمسمات المستري فراد ÷ • • • F. ويتدار بويت المتقادية بليمة الم والمتعالم المتعالم الم د وقار والتصريح والمالي ····· +···· ۲۰۰۰ و ۲ میرون ۲۰۰۰ و ۲ میرون ۲۰۰۰ (میرون میرون میرون ۲۰۰۰ (میرون میرون للمريف المست المست مية القريما <u>x.</u> الفلطف بصابات بتلصا والإلاان a a la suite ana a ېلىدەرىلە دەرر بېرى شېچىچىنە بېرلاردىدەر بىرىدىدىدى بېرلاردى ÷÷i

TO HE CA : ليف مريان 1 <u>____</u> ., ł ; ---1 ş. 1 1. 1 1 1 31-3

		× · ·
ม เมื่อนี้สาราะหมู่หลางเสียงอย่างและเหลือเหลือหลางสู่สำนัญสู่ แนะ จะ และในสาราชน์เหลือ และสินันอาการว่า		
ne se anno 1930 de la gran de la composición de	AMPL DIN 031	CHARTS GARAGE CONTROLS COMPORATION
	السارية موادية سوما من المالي الم المالية المالية	
	(a) A set of the se	
		n ya na sila na sila na sayan na na sila na si
	الم الم معد الديار الم من الم الم مؤانين الم الم الم الم	
magna de proprio proprio de la construcción de la construcción de la construcción de la construcción de la const	·····	المحتجب فالمشافية والمؤلد فالمستجد المعالم
		ուներումը՝ հայտարանում հերուց, շրջուներ, է դերանում է հայտում։ Հայ մի է հայտանություն էր չուրը է դերանում է դերանում։ Հայում է հայտում է հերուն է հե
الموضية المستنقصة الجاري والمراجع والمراجع والمستر ومشهوه	المتسابية أسف شابية المستجد المستجد	and the second
<u>Entres and the part way the same for the same first</u>	영국 이상 회원은 물건 것으로 한 것을 못	· • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
	ىچىنىيەر بىيە بىيە بىيە بىيە بىيە بىيە بىيە بىيە	
	en in presidente de la companya de l	ويعفى المستلس أستلم سالمتكردية التوادية تتبون
	enter de la companya	ا مېلىمى ئېرىكى يېلىكى يېل يېلى ئېلى ئېلى يېلى يېلى يېلى يېلىكى يېلى
المصلحية المستجرب بالتشية تبارك والتشاصيت بالتشار المستحد والمستحد	أسهقت بشاة الديسم متدحاية الاستانية	المراجع فالهريث والتبومون
the second se		
یم کا مان کا میں دیار ہے۔ اور کا میں والی ان میں اور میں میں میں میں میں میں اور میں میں میں میں میں میں میں م یہ استشار ایک میں میں میں اور ایک میں	ىدىرىمىيە بىيەچە ۋىتەمىيە بىرە قىرىمىيە بىرە بىرە يۈركى سېرى بىرە بىرە بىرە بىرەمىيە بىرە ئامار بىرە تەتقىيە	الملاحية موادلا والمواجع من من مقامية مع مستقر مراجع المادية الموادلة المواد المواد المادي الم
مېمىمىمىمىمى د		
	an Arra and a constant of the same	
المراجع المسترية والمتعالم والمتعالم والمتعالم والمتعالم المتعالم والمتعالم والمتعالم والمتعالم والمتعالم والم	الالانتهام المراط أتراط المناطر	المهدية منابعة ألبانا
	et al se de la sette de la	

: م. : ج.

· · · · · ·



AND DIV -----제 기도 같 ; • ------543-1-65-40 à sièn si مليت ما وست المنام الأسطينية والراجي a sainte - initial and the second se ...1 بإدباد الفادر : <u>i</u> 1.1.1 ÷. ÷. ÷. r Sig المحاد الإستراسية المتحاجات . ۋا دىش A Company of the second se 1 , de la composition de la comp 4. 4. a continue and للمقاطعا سالي ------______ • -----. the second s i na si n Na si na s یں ہے۔ اور الجب فرح میں اور راغ افراد البلا الار الو بالیے T 1 · · · · · · · · L..... ۰ بو المعاد الم • · · <u>+</u>..... the the state of t المواد بوسلمواته بالمديد . -----به بند مد م -----ستبت الا 4 5. 5 war war in the second يو بي الم مديني أراد والمتحد والمراجع المراجع nada naji Maganaka n 1 +--+ میں ہے۔ البیاد البید البیاد البید - 1-1 <u>____</u> در بهد چنور چر 24.41 T. -14 ֥•• إفتشهرهم والمسلومين والمسلمانين 4-5-بأدابع منتقi ; i مروعاتها معاد محمد با ومصيف . مراجع المحمد الحاد المحمو المات - -----ئا جاجانچ بېد 4 x 1 والمناجعة والمحاجب ______ in di inte -----كشباب فالمتشيكين الخواصيان المحاصة سؤيتها 1 4 4 4 4 FIGURE 15 COMPUTER SOLUTION FOR SINGLE TONE CASE المحالية محاهدا سوم

the skirts of the passband and are measured at frequencies of 10.58 cps and 10.86 cps for this case. For proper evaluation one must consider the storage associated with the tone filters; for the circuit Q's used, a storage of two cycles is reasonable. Correcting for tone filter storage the null points are more accurately located at 10.565 cps and 10.835 cps. Another interesting observation one can make is to note the large signal distortion present in the discriminator output when operating near the bandedges of the Chebishev IF filter but at a point where limiting is continuous. This distortion is attributed to the non-linear phase characteristic of the filter.

Data of Figure 16 is similar in all respects to the data of Figure except that the IF filter output (limiter input) is reduced 10 db. The effect is that the frequency range in which limiting is continuous is narrowed and the null points are closer together.

The case of two modulating tones was run next. This condition is equivalent in the unscaled situation to sinusoidal modulating tones of 7.5 kilocycles and 12.14 kilocycles each producing 30 kilocycles of deviation. Figure 17 includes data for a high limiter input level while Figure 18 data has a limiter input 10 db lower. The modulator output was not included in the run shown in Figure 17 because of the lack of recorder capacity. The higher frequency tone oscillator output was recorded to allow phase comparisons. To demonstrate that the modulator was free of amplitude modulations under two tone modulation it is again recorded in Figure 18 data

	AMPL. Div. 031	G RECORDING CHARTS	GRAPHIC CONTROLS CORPORATION
IF FILTER OUTPUT (CHEBISHEY			
. 5¥/CH	يې يې پې د بې د د د د د د د د د د د د د د د د د	د به موجود به موجود المحمود ال محمد المحمود ال	
	n na	and a second	
			╴┊┊╪╴╞╧╋╴╞╴┊┯┿┽╋╴╬╌╅╼┠╌┯┷╋╺┿╌┿┷
	وارزا أيشك ويتهدوني متشارك وأرا	يتنهده وتعرف والمراجع	
LIMITER OUTPUT	د بلغان بر این این میکند. در دیگر او در این این اور اور بریکی میکند. اور		
IV/CN	\sim \sim \sim		
	\sim		
	- " The second se		
IV/CH		and a second sec	
	د میں بار اور اور اور اور اور اور اور اور اور ا	aning of a strain strain parts. Aning of a strain st	
	the second se	A share the	
		an an Ang A	
	ويعونها المحمد المحم		
10.9	لا میں الجمع کی اور چر اور میں چینے مراجع میں میں میں اور	المسلح المسلح الجار المالية المسلح المسلح المسلح المسلح المسلح المسلح المالية المالية المالية المسلح المسلح ال المسلح المسلح المالية المالية المالية المسلح الم المسلح المسلح المالية المالية المالية المالية ال	
		na internet a sum in	
	n ni na		
CARRIER FREQUENCY		in a stranger og en en er	n da managan na san na san ng ng na san ng
	·····	e ne de polo de la composición de la c	
10.5		n in the second seco	
		الملية التواريمية الموليسة التعالم مرة. الا	
TONE FILTER OUTPUT			
		$ \rightarrow \gamma = 1$	
		-/ <u>}-/</u>	
		Ze cita di Verte	
		\sim	
		i Andreas and a second second second second Andreas and a second second second second second second second second	
MODULATOR OUTPUT	الاستان التي الم المنطقية عليه المسابق من المستقر الماسية. مسابق المستقد المالية المستقد المالية المالية المستقد المالية الم	n 1993 Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna	i
الدين جيادي والعادية، من موادية المستاد الالماني الماليان المالية المالية. المنت التي يومية موادية مارية، من يوما التاريخ المالية المالية المالية المالية المالية المالية.	ار از این میروند. این میروند این از میروند این است. را میرون میرون میرون میرون میرون میرون میرون میروند میروند.	e e e para a para a como a sera. Ana a como a	en en standen van Alexan yn Alexander an de stander i de stander i de stander. Sen en stal stander yn de generatier gester staden en de stander. De stander stander i de stander stander stand
innen er seine führen in stande eine einen eine eine eine eine stellen. Die seiten bestellten eine einen stell		in a strategy and a second strategy and	her in a single state of the sector of the
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
TAL OSCILLAIOR GUTPET			
		na sunatana posta terta de la seconda de Escando de la seconda de la	
and a second	ى بىرى بىرى بىرى بىرى بىرى بىرى بىرى بى	ور پې د د د د د د مېرو ور مېږې د د د د د د د د د د د د د د د د د د	
1			
	tint alien and the state of the		
har na seo en	ىرى بىيەرسەيرىكى ئەر يەر يەر يەر يەر يەر يەر يەر يەر يەر ي	ىئىل بىلايتىيە ھەمەمە بىلىد ھەتقىيىسەت بىر	
and and a star and a star a star a star and a star a s The star a st	ann an bhail an a' steach an thair an tha an an an thair an an thair an thair an thair an thair an thair an tha	a in a anno 1999 ann ann an Anna 1999. Anna 1999 ann an Anna 1999	an saint ha an a' an

•

1.1. **k**: ↓ ↓ -----. . . · · · · · $(1+1) \in \mathbb{R}$ 4 1. 1 1 す キ . . 1-4-20 **F**. ----с÷

33-2

-----. Ч. 4 1 4... Ħ, <u>----</u> 1 i ł - 1 . .4 T. 444 ī ШĻ ÷ ÷ ł 1 Partie -÷ 1 in in

. .

335

	مىر <u>ىيە ئەتتەر بەتتەر مەتتەر مەتتەر مەتتەر مەتتەر مەتتەر مەتتەر مەتتەر مەتتەر مەتتەر مەتتەر مەتتەر</u>	G ALCORD VG CHARTS	UNAPPIC CONTROLS SORPORE
		543-1-65-40	(
			na internet des
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
			in in a sur a sur francisco de ser de se
			1 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
		ىسۇسىرى بىرىدىغىرىغان قارىغان قارار - سۇسىرىكى بىرىدى بىرىكى بەركى قارار -	╸╌┧╼╌┲═╧╌╋╌┊╌┲╌╉╼ ┶╾┿╾╴╞╴┲╊╼┎╴╌┊╌╉╺
			مستعمر
			na a propaga ata ta ta
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	·
			er og det in og som en sen er
ال المالي و المراجع الحالي المراجع المراجع الحالي المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المر المراجع المراجع			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
AALE AN ALE IS A		and the second sec	n an an an an ann an ann an an an an an
	an a	د میکند شیخه کرد. د میکند شیخه خد میکند این است کار کار میکند این از این	
		and a second and a second s	
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	-
For state products and a state of the sta	ـــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ		
n an		است با ها ژاه د از این از از میباد آید این دارد از ای	en seneri e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e
	الأريار وبالانتقادة والمطامع بعداها عار		
		مستمنا المراجع المراجع	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
na produce de la companya de la comp La companya de la comp		i e ste statistica i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	
			·
		دی. از شنایا در میشونیش ست . در ا	terreterreterreterreterreterreterreter
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
an <u>Baha</u> n salan an an Annar ann a' <u>an Annar an Annar a</u> n Annar an Annar		+	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
			հետությունը հետությունը։ Դեն հետությունը հետությունը հետո
	f = f = f = f	$f = f = \langle f \rangle$	
		- / · · · · · · / · ·	X.Z.
		$\sqrt{2}$	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
		and the second	ana na makangan kunaku di saka Ali
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	an a	
الاستېلى مەراپىلىكى بارانى يەراپى ئۇسىي بىلا دەرەپ بەرە بەرەپ بەرەپ بەرەپ بەرەپ بەرەپ بىر بەرەپ سىيەر بارا ئېرىكى مەرىپىكى سىيەتتە تىرىپىكى بىرىسىيە بەرەپ بەرەپ بەرەپ بەرەپ بەرەپ بەرەپ بەرەپ بەرەپ	Construction allower of the advantage of the second se	and a strategy of the strateg	
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
and the state of the second		ستحسب فكمستحص ومصاحبة	ىرىيى ئەرسىيىنى بىرىيى ئېرىيى بىرىدى ئەربىيى ئېرىيى ئېرىيى ئېرىيى بىرىد
		1	
ang sa			
		en an feir para an an da an feir an feir ann. An seo bha an	
			- محمد بالله التي المحمد ا مراجع محمد محمد المحمد المح
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
		er e aleman a ca ca aceiri chura a a a	•
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	FIGURE 16 COMPUTER SOLUTION PO	R SINGLE TONE CASE (LOW LE	VEL)
a sector of the			
		مينيندي ميريند ميريند ميريند ، وميرين . هيرين هي توريخ ميري ميري مي اين .	
		33	
a an Anna an An	······································	ar - alaa ah ar ah	

· · .

33-6

•

_

- - -



34-1



34.2

***** ***** ~ r. T 1....

ŧ 4-4

ang ang di La kanang 34-5





35-1



35-2



بهام متنتشد والدارة الترأسيد السام معاجا _____ فالمتحاجب والتكري . ج;

35-4



543-1-65-40

and the high frequency tone oscillator output omitted. Basic data characteristics are the same as those for the single tone case. The tone filter outputs are out of phase with the tone oscillator outputs when operation is below limiting level and in phase in the center portion of the band where limiting is continuous. The apparent distortion in the tone filter outputs is the result of cross talk between channels and is due to the low Q's of the tone band pass filters which limited separation. These tone filter Q's were chosen as a compromise to provide reasonable separation yet allow a computer run in the two hour time period.

A single run was made using the linear phase IF filter characteristic. This data is included in Figure 19. The two tone condition was utilized for this run and filter output was at low level. The purpose of using the linear phase characteristic was to demonstrate that the dynamic response observed was not peculiar to the Chebishev filter. It is readily observed that the tone filter outputs experience the same phase reversals observed with the Chebishev and null points are clearly evident. The spacing between null points has increased slightly because the linear phase filter's skirt slope is not as steep immediately beyond the pass band. Comparison of the discriminator output using the Chebishev filter indicates that distortion is not significant near the bandedges with the linear phase filter.



37-1

37-2

• ••

#31

HAN'S

• • • • • • . . 1 .**..**8., -----Ŧ the second

GARTA-DAG

G#40

GRE) *- --الدانية الأمية. مصادر ترجيعين الهم · · · · · · · · · · · VE

7-4

S PECCODING CHARTS -----011 HAPNIC CONTRINS ANPL. DIV 1.4.4.1 543-1-65-40 and a chine was shown i Andreas and a state of the st tral م أحسبته ag in 4... 1 a. 1 ┿┷╪╌┽╌╆╌╈┈┷╌┽╴┽╌╘╾┾╾ internet and in the de comè c . 11 الجارية وبالمستنقد -----..... مربع المنتقد ال . معالم دید اور میشد. در در مانو ι. e e denaria. A caracteria المنطق أالمتصطعاتها به، ماند م ÷-سین دادهمهدینیه ژبیدینی همچاند و بو سرور ز المستار الم daar in geee

F1 (1 - 7)

.

.....

.

f = X

2

. . .

ille de la co

.

. .

A. L.

١ - 4

÷...

in the second ÷...÷ . ۲۰ میں دیکھی کے لیے ہیں ہے ان ا دیکھی کے انتہا ہے ا المستجنبية المتناقين والروار ÷ - - <u>-</u> ay na in s ىرىم بىرىكى سەتىلىكى سىلىك يەر مەرەبىيە بەرىكى بىرىكى ب ÷...

the strategy of the

г /i ----**.** . i hildere فالتؤاذ وألتهم الرا 2 i, parte de la company سب د د

والم وتصالب المالي Same مشائدة المارية المرابقة والمحتور والمشتعم والمستقد والمستقد والم . المحمد سقينيو درينيو رساند الاستادين ساياد المسيو الدالي

السب کے۔ ایس کی

37

FIGURE 19 COMPUTER SOLUTION FOR TWO TONE CASE (LINEAR FEASE FI

د د ایند در در د ای اگستان

1.11

مغدسها ا ----

ورد میخ

CONCLUSIONS

As a result of the arguments and computer results in this report, the following conclusions are reached.

- (1) The dynamic response characteristic exhibited by the AVCO range safety receiver is the natural response anticipated from a receiver utilizing a Foster-Seeley discriminator.
- (2) The IF filter phase characteristics do not have any significant influence in the generation of the dynamic response observed.
- (3) The Chebishev filter introduces significant distortion into the FM system when signal frequency is near the filter bandedges.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The contributions of Mr. George Cooper, Mr. John Rhamy and Dr. Allan Wilson are acknowledged. Mr. George Cooper set up the analog computer simulation and prepared the material of Section 6 of this report. Mr. John Rhamy contributed the explanation for the natural behavior of FM receivers (with amplitude sensitive discriminators) as described in Section 3. Dr. Allan Wilson assisted in resolving simulation problems and developed the "proof" of FM simulation as included in the Appendix.

REFERENCES

- 1. Command Receiver Decoder, Vehicleborne Specification 55-01233-1
- 2. 80045 XRW 10/964 Handbook of Operating and Maintenance Instructions Command Receiver Decoder, Vehicleborne Part No. 185010-1 thru -151 AVCO Corp. Electronics Division, Cincinnati, Ohio 45241 10 September 1964
- 3. Electrical Engineers Handbook Fourth Edition P8-29 Pender and McIlwan
- 4. Proceedings of the Western Joint Computer Conference May 9-11,1961
 p. 490
- 5. Missiles and Space December 1961 by John M.Lambert "GE's Electronic System Evaluator."
- 6. Simulation January 1964, p. 31



APPENDIX I

Simulation of Frequency Modulation by Use of an Analog Computer

(Dr. A. N. Wilson)



Assuming carrier frequency ω_{σ} , modulation frequency p, and the desired deviation $\Delta \omega$, the necessary instantaneous frequency of the resonant element is $\omega = \omega_{\sigma} + \Delta \omega \cos pt$.

The analog loop gain above is ω^2 (amplifier gains are assured to be unity, for simplicity). The instantaneous oscillator frequency is thus $\sqrt{\omega^2} = \omega$, which may be identified by analogy with $1/\sqrt{LC}$ of the conventional tank circuit used in a frequency modulator. This analogy should constitute sufficient "proof" of proper simulation of FM on the analog computer.

An alternate "proof" consists in showing $X = A \sin (\omega_0 t + \frac{\omega_0}{\rho} \sin \rho t)$ satisfies the differential equation solved by the analog loop.

$$\frac{d}{dt}\left(\frac{x}{\omega}\right) = \frac{d}{dt}\left[\frac{A\sin\left(\omega_{0}t + \frac{\Delta\omega}{P}\sin pt\right)}{\omega_{0} + \Delta\omega\cos pt}\right]$$

$$= A\left[\cos\left(\omega_{0}t + \frac{\Delta\omega}{P}\sin pt\right) + \frac{P\Delta\omega\sin pt\sin\left(\omega_{0}t + \frac{\Delta\omega}{P}\sin pt\right)}{\left(\omega_{0} + \Delta\omega\cos pt\right)^{2}}\right]$$
Since $\frac{\Delta \omega}{\omega_c} <<1$ and $\frac{\rho_{\Delta \omega}}{\omega_o^2} <<1$, the second term may be neglected, Thus $\frac{d}{dt} \left(\frac{x}{\omega}\right) \approx A \cos\left(\omega_o t + \frac{\Delta \omega}{\rho} \sin \rho t\right)$

Similarly we can show

$$\frac{d}{dt} \left[\frac{1}{\omega} \frac{d}{dt} \left(\frac{x}{\omega} \right) \right] \approx -A \sin \left(\omega_0 t + \frac{\Delta \omega}{r} \sin pt \right) = -x \qquad Q. E. D.$$

The approximation employed here is exactly the same as used in showing a conventional modulator produces FM as defined above. One makes a binomial expansion approximation on $\sqrt{C} = \sqrt{C_0 + \Delta C}$,

(See Seely "Electron Tube Circuits" page 377, or Terman, or numerous other references.)

6 JUL 66 55083

GIIIIIID GENERAL DYNAMICS